
 

 

Planning Commission Meeting 
7PM 

 Public Safety Building 
401 E Third St 

Hybrid: Instructions To Join Electronically At Www.Newbergoregon.Gov 
Email Comments To: Fe.Bates@Newbergoregon.Gov 

   
ACCOMMODATION OF PHYSICAL IMPAIRMENTS: 
In order to accommodate persons with physical impairments, please notify the Community Development Department Office 
Assistant II of any special physical or language accommodations you may need as far in advance of the meeting as possible as and no 
later than 48 business hours prior to the meeting.  To request these arrangements, please contact the Office Assistant at (503) 537-
1240. For TTY services please dial 711. 

September 11, 2025 

 

1. CALL MEETING TO ORDER 
 

2. ROLL CALL 

 

3. PUBLIC COMMENTS 
(5-minute maximum per person - for items not on the agenda) 

 
4. CONSENT CALENDAR 

a. 8/14/2025 Planning Commission Meeting Minutes 

 
5. PLANNING COMMISSION TO CONSIDER REMOVAL OF MEMBER FOR NONPERFORMANCE OF DUTY 

a. Memo of Consideration to remove a Commission Member for nonperformance of Duty 

Pursuant to NMC 2.15.005 and Planning Commission Rule 3.1, any Commissioner who fails to attend at 
least 75% of regular meetings within a one-year term shall be disqualified from serving on the 
Commission, unless such absences are excused.  

 
6. LEGISLATIVE PUBLIC HEARING 

(Please complete a registration form to give testimony - 5-minute maximum per person, unless otherwise set by majority motion 
of the Planning Commission). 

a. DCA25-0002: Code Maintenance Package- 2025 
 

7. ITEMS FROM STAFF 
a. Staff Updates for Planning Commission 

 
8. ITEMS FROM COMMISSIONERS 

 
 

9. ADJOURNMENT 

http://www.newbergoregon.gov/
mailto:Fe.Bates@Newbergoregon.Gov
https://newbergoregon.sharepoint.com/:b:/s/ExternalSharing/ESQj3BcH_E5MhEHTEa4SIesBVNSaGEqTYBUlmMbtQHr1_w?e=3MW7VG
https://newbergoregon.sharepoint.com/:b:/s/ExternalSharing/EYL3PU5nWs1OtAA5CwTeH1gB10N4fPaoqJJDsSTHpKddrA?e=hQZYXi
https://newbergoregon.sharepoint.com/:b:/s/ExternalSharing/ETdYD20dwcRMt5IZpwNIfs4BF_tKZnUe_hJ_uH-YYLXhdg?e=0ah0b6


 
  
 
 

 

Planning Commission Meeting 
 

City of Newberg Planning Commission Meeting         August 14, 2025 

August 14, 2025 

 
 

CALL MEETING TO ORDER 

Chair Linda Newton-Curtis called meeting to order at 7:00 p.m. 

 

ROLL CALL 

Commissioners Present:  Linda Newton-Curtis(Chair) 

Jason Dale  

Mathew Mansfield 

Randy Rickert 

Jose Villalpando (Vise Chair)-Joined late via Zoom 

Kriss Wright -Via Zoom 

 

Commissioners Absent:     Elise Steffen (Student) 

 

 

 

City Council Representative: Absent 

      

 

 

Staff Present: Community Development Director: Scot Siegel 

 Administrative Assistant: Fé Bates 

 

 

PUBLIC COMMENTS 

There were no public comments. 

CONSENT CALENDAR 

7/10/2025 Planning Commission Meeting Minutes 

Chair Linda Newton-Cutis asked if there were any comments on the Planning Commission meeting minutes 

from July 10, 2025. There were none. 

 Commissioner Jason Dale moved to adopt the Planning Commission meeting minutes of July 10, 2025. 

Commissioner Wright seconded the motion.  

The motion passed unanimously with all present members voting "Aye". 

 

LEGISLATIVE WORK SESSION 

DCA25-0002: Code Maintenance 2025 

Community Development Director Scot Siegel presented the code maintenance package, which is scheduled 

for public hearing on September 11, 2025. Director Siegel provided an orientation to the draft code 

amendments, noting that the document included commentary boxes explaining each proposed change. He 



 
 

Newberg Planning Commission Meeting –August 14, 2025  2 of 2 

highlighted three items that required additional research since the previous meeting: garage setbacks, fence 

heights, and institutional accessory structures. 

For garage setbacks, staff proposed requiring 10% window coverage on side-facing garage walls within 15-

20 feet of the street to enhance aesthetics. The Commission supported this approach as it would improve 

street appearance and provide benefits such as natural light. 

Regarding fence heights in residential zones, staff presented research showing other jurisdictions allow 

fences up to 7-8 feet tall. The Commission debated a proposed requirement that fences be set back 5 feet 

from retaining walls near streets. Commissioners expressed concerns this would create unusable spaces and 

potential safety issues. The Commission reached consensus to eliminate this setback requirement while 

maintaining the 8-foot combined height limit for retaining walls and fences. 

For institutional properties in residential zones, staff research showed these properties often have more than 

the currently allowed 2 accessory structures, with minimal lot coverage. The Commission supported allowing 

additional structures beyond the 2-structure limit provided they meet the 25-foot setback requirement. 

The Commission also discussed sign height regulations, clarifying that signs taller than 20 feet would not be 

permitted except for properties over 10 acres in C1 or I zones, where 30-foot signs may be allowed. 

 

ITEMS FROM STAFF 

Mr. Siegel confirmed the public hearing for the code amendments is scheduled for September 11, 2025, and 

noted that DLCD has been notified. Any comments received will be shared with the Commission prior to the 

hearing. 

ITEMS FROM COMMISSIONERS 

Commissioner Wright expressed concern about the city's policy requiring property owners to bear financial 

responsibility for sidewalk installation and maintenance, even when sidewalks are in the public right-of-way. 

She noted that costs can range from $5,500 to $6,600 for a 100-foot sidewalk, potentially creating financial 

hardship for seniors, disabled residents, and those with limited income. 

Fe Bates informed the Commission about a recently launched program where the city's maintenance 

department can replace sidewalks at reduced cost compared to private contractors, requiring 50% payment 

upfront and the remainder upon completion of work. Chair Newton-Curtis suggested exploring the 

possibility of payment plans. 

Mr. Siegel advised that while this concern falls outside the Planning Commission's scope, commissioners 

could address their concerns to the City Council individually. 

 

ADJOURNMENT 

 

Chair Linda Newton-Curtis adjourned the meeting at: 8:33 p.m. 

   

 

        

Attest: 

 

 

 

          



Newberg Community Development • 414 E First Street, Newberg, OR 97132 • 503-537-1240 • planning@newbergoregon.gov 

 

 

 

 

 

MEMORANDUM 
 
 

TO:  Newberg Planning Commission 

 

FROM: Scot Siegel, Community Development Director 

 

SUBJECT: Planning Commission to consider removal of member for nonperformance of duty 

  

DATE:  9/3/25 

 

 
Pursuant to NMC 2.15.005 and Planning Commission Rule 3.1, any Commissioner who fails to attend at least 75% 
of regular meetings within a one-year term shall be disqualified from serving on the Commission, unless such 
absences are excused. In addition, Planning Commission Rule 3.2 requires that Commissioners notify Community 
Development staff in advance if they are unable to attend a scheduled meeting. 

 

Student Commissioner Steffan has been absent from 6 of the 7 Planning Commission meetings held during her 
tenure which began January 1, 2025. Of these absences, 2 were excused as staff was notified in advance. The 
remaining 4 absences were unexcused.  Staff has been unable to connect with Student Commissioner Steffan since 
May, despite several attempts to contact her. 

 

The Commission is requested to discuss and take action regarding the possible disqualification and removal of 
Student Commissioner Steffan due to nonperformance of duty and to request City Council to appoint another 
Student Commissioner according to the Municipal Code and Planning Commission Rules.  This would be In the 
form of a motion approved by the Commission. 
 

 

 



                                     

Community Development 
 

 
 

Newberg Community Development • 414 E First Street, Newberg, OR 97132 • 503-537-1240 • www.newbergoregon.gov 

PLANNING COMMISSION PUBLIC HEARING 
ON NEWBERG MUNICIPAL CODE, TITLE 15 DEVELOPMENT CODE, 

MAINTENANCE AMENDMENTS 

 

MEETING DATE: September 11, 2025 

FILE NO:  DCA25-0002 Development Code Maintenance 2025 

APPLICANT: City of Newberg 
 
SUBJECT: Legislative Public Hearing 

 
A. STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Conduct a Legislative Public Hearing and move to 

adopt Resolution 2025-400.  
 

B. SUMMARY AND BACKGROUND 

Annually, the Community Development Department prepares amendments to Newberg 
Municipal Code (NMC), Title 15 Development Code, and related regulations, to maintain 
the code’s accuracy, predictability, readability, and compliance with applicable state and 
federal laws. “Code Maintenance” also includes minor policy updates1 to improve 
customer service and operational efficiency, consistent with City Council Goals, 
including 2024-2025 goal to, “Create and maintain a high level of customer service.”  

The proposed amendments contained in Exhibit A-1 are designed to address issues 
identified by staff through application of the code, customer feedback, and review of state 
land use legislation and rules. The Planning Commission previously conducted work 
sessions on the draft amendments, July 10 and August 14, 2025. 

C. PROCESS 

Amendments to Title 15 (Development Code) of the Newberg Municipal Code (NMC) 
are processed as a Type IV (Legislative) application and follow the procedures in NMC 
15.100.060, including required public hearings before the Planning Commission and City 
Council.  The Planning Commission acting in its land use advisory role to City Council 
makes a recommendation through adoption of a Resolution. Council then conducts a 
public hearing and votes to enact an ordinance adopting the code changes if it so decides. 

Public information about code maintenance amendments is generally limited to public 
meeting agendas and legislative hearing notices. If a particular topic merits broader 

 
1 Major policy updates require City Council direction and are typically addressed through the Planning Division 
Annual Work Program.  



P a g e  | 2 

 

 
 Newberg Community Development • 414 E First Street, Newberg, OR 97132 • 503-537-1240 • www.newbergoregon.gov 

public engagement, it would be referred to the Planning Division Work Program for 
separate processing.  

Key dates for this application (completed items in italics): 

07/10/2025 Planning Commission Work Session # (Code Concepts) 

08/07/2025  Notify State (DLCD) 35 days prior to first hearing 

08/14/2025 Planning Commission Work Session #2 (Draft Code) 

09/11/2025 Planning Commission Public Hearing 

10/06/2025 City Council Study Session 

10/20/2025 City Council Public Hearing - First Reading  

11/03/2025 City Council Public Hearing – Second Reading, if required 

D. DISCUSSION:  The proposed code amendments are summarized in Table 1, beginning 
on page 3 of this memorandum. Exhibit A-1 contains the proposed text changes with 
staff commentary. A clean copy without commentary will be prepared for the City 
Council public hearing.  
 
Prior Planning Commission feedback: 

During the Planning Commission’s July 10 work session on the code amendments, the 
Commission requested additional information regarding the following: 

 Photo examples of side-loaded garages, as related to NMC 15.326.025 and NMC 
15.410.020(A)(3). These are contained in Exhibit B-1. 
 

 Research on Residential Fence Height Standards, as related to NMC 
15.410.070(D). This is provided in Exhibit B-2. 

 
 Research on Institutional Accessory Structures in Residential Zones, as related to 

15.415.010(C). This is provided in Exhibit B-3.  
 

Items withdrawn from the code maintenance package: 

 The amendment requiring additional Landscape Plan information is withdrawn 
because the landscaping regulations are being reviewed as a separate project. 

 The combined fence and wall height amendment (15.410.070(D)(5)) is withdrawn 
due to the need for further research on impacts it would have to new subdivisions 
versus infill development. 

 The staking of sidewalks amendment (Title 12) is not a land use code. It was 
provided to the Commission for informational purposes only and will be included 
in a separate ordinance for City Council consideration. 



P a g e  | 3 

 

 
 Newberg Community Development • 414 E First Street, Newberg, OR 97132 • 503-537-1240 • www.newbergoregon.gov 

Table 1: Summary of 2025 Code Maintenance Amendments 

Topic (Page) Newberg 
Municipal Code 

Issue Code Amendment Concept 

Title 15, Division 15.100 – Definitions and Procedures 

Definition of 
Family  
(p 3) 

15.05.030 State law preempts local code. 
Definition of Family referencing 
“one or more persons related by 
blood, marriage, domestic 
partnership, legal adoption or 
guardianship, plus not more than 
five additional persons” does not 
comply with state law (ORS 
90.112 and ORS 197.015) 
 

Changed definition of family in 
15.05.030 to: "Any number of 
individuals living together 
regardless of familial or non-
familial relationship."  

Height  
(p 3) 

15.05.030 Height limitations apply to all 
structures but the definition of 
height is limited to buildings.  
 

Clarified height definition as it 
applies to fences and other non-
building structures. 

Cottage Size  
(p 3) 

15.05.030 Definition of Cottage Cluster 
limits cottage footprint to, “less 
than 900 square feet”, but 
development standard in NMC 
15.415.050 states “cannot exceed 
900 feet”. 
 

Changed definition in 15.05.030 to 
"not more than 900 square feet" 

Mixed Use 
Dwellings 
(p 3) 

15.05.030 The definition of “Dwelling, 
mixed use” is unclear regarding 
uses within the same building. 

Clarified that a mixed-use dwelling 
is a dwelling with another non-
residential main use within the 
same building. See also, 
amendments to NMC 
15.415.010(B) and NMC 
15.305.020. 
 

Simple Type I 
Reviews 
(p 4) 

15.100.020 Review of home occupations and 
sign permits is currently Type I 
but the review is straightforward 
and typically combined with 
review of building permit or 
business license, as applicable. 

Amended 15.100.020 to be 
consistent with the existing site 
design review procedure for signs 
in NMC 15.220.020(A)(1) and 
streamlined reviews of home 
occupations by not requiring a 
separate Type I land use application 
and fee in addition to the business 
license review which also checks 
for zoning compliance. 
 
 
 



P a g e  | 4 

 

 
 Newberg Community Development • 414 E First Street, Newberg, OR 97132 • 503-537-1240 • www.newbergoregon.gov 

Topic (Page) Newberg 
Municipal Code 

Issue Code Amendment Concept 

Referral to 
Public Hearing 
(p 5) 

15.100.220(E) and 
15.235.030(A)(6) 

State law preempts local code. 
Land Divisions applications 
cannot be “elevated” to public 
hearing unless appealed, per 
ORS 197.195 [Senate Bill 1537, 
Section 45 (2024)]. 
 

Removed (A)(5) and (A)(6) from 
NMC 15.235.030(A)(6) and NMC 
15.100.220(G) 

Title 15, Division 15.200 - Land Use Applications 

Code 
Adjustment for 
Lot Coverage 
(p 6) 

15.220.020(A) 
and 
15.220.020(1)(c) 

The code is unclear on whether 
code adjustment can increase 
allowed parking coverage like 
the lot coverage adjustment 
(limited to 2%). The situations 
that give rise to the need for one 
may warrant the other too. 

Changed 15.210.020(A) to: "Yard 
Setback Dimension, Lot Area, 
Percentage of Lot Coverage and 
Parking Coverage, Lot 
Dimensions". Change A(1)(c) to: 
"Percentage of Lot Coverage and 
Parking Coverage…" 
 
 

Sign Permit 
Application 
(p 7) 

15.220.020(A)(1)(k) 
15.100.020 

Separate Type I land use 
application is required for signs, 
though sign permit application is 
reviewed for compliance with 
sign code at the same time as it is 
reviewed for building permit. 
 

Made sign permit application a 
simple Type I review by not 
requiring a separate land use 
application. Added asterisk to end 
of 15.220.020(A)(1)(k) for simple 
Type I review. See also, 
15.100.020. 

Multifamily 
Design Review 
– Type II  
(p 8) 

15.220.020(A)(3)(a) State law preempts local code. 
The City cannot require Type III 
(Quasi-Judicial) review for 
multifamily developments except 
where the applicant requests a 
variance or a conditional use 
permit is required. Type II 
(Limited Land Use) review is 
required for multifamily uses in 
the R-2, R-P, C-4 zones, per 
ORS 197.015(12)(a)(B). 
 

Removed “Multifamily 
dwellings in the R-2, RP or C-4 
zone” from the list of Type III 
reviews in 15.220.020(A)(3)(a), 
defaulting to Type II for housing 
that is permitted outright in these 
zones. 

Land Division 
application 
referral to 
public hearing 
(p 9) 

15.235.030(A)(6) 
and 15.100.220(G) 

State law preempts local code. 
Land Divisions applications 
cannot be “elevated” to public 
hearing unless appealed, per 
ORS 197.195 [Senate Bill 1537, 
Section 45 (2024)]. 
 
 
 

Removed (A)(5) and (A)(6) from 
NMC 15.235.030(A)(6) and NMC 
15.100.220(G). 



P a g e  | 5 

 

 
 Newberg Community Development • 414 E First Street, Newberg, OR 97132 • 503-537-1240 • www.newbergoregon.gov 

Topic (Page) Newberg 
Municipal Code 

Issue Code Amendment Concept 

Substantial 
Completion and 
Bonding of 
Public 
Improvements; 
Early Issuance 
of Building  
(pp 8-10) 

15.235.070(A)(7) Bond reference in 
15.235.070(A)(7) does not align 
with 15.235.060 and current 
practice for Public Improvement 
Plan closeout prior to the final 
plat without the project 
complying with 15.235.060. 
 

Edited to be consistent with current 
practice and 15.235.060. 

Planned Unit 
Development 
Design 
Standards 
(p 11) 

15.240.020(Q) Text is unclear on whether 
design standards in 15.220.060 
apply to PUDs that do not 
contain multi-family 
development. Past practice is that 
they do. 

Clarified 15.240.020(Q) to state 
that all PUDs regardless of planned 
dwelling type must comply with the 
relevant provisions of 15.220.060. 
Note: Senate Bill 974 (2025) may 
affect this provision.2 
 

Title 15, Division 15.300 – Zoning Districts 

Child Care 
Statute  
(pp 12-13) 

15.305.020 (child-
care use notes) 

Notes refer to statutes in ORS 
657A which were renumbered in 
2013. 

Changed reference in 15.305.020 to 
ORS 329A. 

Mixed-Use 
Dwellings in the 
RP Zone 
(p 13) 
 

15.305.020 
15.415.010(B) 
15.05.030 - 
Definition of 
Mixed-Use 
Dwelling 

The code does not allow “mixed-
use dwellings” in the RP Zone 
(15.305.020), which is at odds 
with the zone’s purpose: “The 
RP residential-professional 
district provides for a desirable 
mixing of residential 
land uses with medical and local 
business office uses in possible 
close proximity to adjacent 
residential areas.” 

Added Mixed-Use Dwelling as an 
allowed use to R-P district 
(15.305.020) and amended the 
definition in 15.05.030 to specify 
that both the residential use and 
non-residential use are in the same 
building rather separate buildings. 
The RP Zone already allows more 
than one main use if not in the same 
building and the change does not 
affect allowed uses in other zones.  
 
 
 
 

Garage 
Entrance 
Orientation and 
Setback 
(pp 14-16) 

15.326.025 and 
15.410.020(A)(3); 
Exhibit A 
(Graphics) 

Need to clarify the Garage 
Setback for houses with side-
loaded garages served by shared 
private drives in the Springbrook 
District. 

Clarified 15.326.025 and 
15.410.020(A)(3) so that garage 
entrances are to be setback 20 feet 
from the roadway or drive they take 
access from (street, private street, 
or shared driveway easement). 
Graphic added to Exhibit A. 
 
 

 
2 See SB 964, Sections 8 and 9: https://olis.oregonlegislature.gov/liz/2025R1/Measures/Overview/SB974: 



P a g e  | 6 

 

 
 Newberg Community Development • 414 E First Street, Newberg, OR 97132 • 503-537-1240 • www.newbergoregon.gov 

Topic (Page) Newberg 
Municipal Code 

Issue Code Amendment Concept 

Title 15, Division 15.400 – Development Standards 

Maximum 
Setback 
Exceptions in 
C-1. C-2, C3 
(pp 16-17) 

15.410.020(B) The Maximum Front Yard 
Setbacks often conflicts with 
existing development patterns 
particularly with properties 
fronting Highway 99. Applying 
for a variance currently is the 
only remedy. 

Revised 15.410.020(B) to provide 
an exception to the maximum 
setback, where an existing building, 
public utility easement, lot 
dimensions, topography, or similar 
site condition makes compliance 
infeasible. 

Interior Setback 
for Lots 
Abutting 
Institutional or 
Community 
Facilities, and 
Lots Abutting 
Unincorporated 
Lands 
(pp 17-18) 

15.410.030(B)(1) 
and (C)  
 

Code does not say what the 
setback is from interior lot lines 
that abut an Institutional Zone or 
Community Facilities Zone, or 
that abut unincorporated 
properties. The presumption is 
that a greater setback applies 
where dissimilar uses abut one 
another but the code is unclear. 

Clarified that interior yards of not 
less than 10 feet are required for 
development in C-1 or C-2 when an 
interior lot line is common with 
property zoned residential, 
institutional, or community 
facilities.  For lots in any zone that 
abut an unincorporated property, 
the minimum setback is 5 feet for 
residential developments and 10 
feet for nonresidential 
developments. 
 

 
 

 

15.410.070(D) The code limits residential 
fences to 6 feet in height, and the 
Building Code exempts from 
permits any fence 7 feet or less 
in height. A 6-foot fence is often 
not adequate for privacy. Fence 
height is measured differently 
between the two codes, as well. 

Updated the Residential Zones 
fence height maximum, from 6 ft. 
to 7 ft., and edited other text for 
clarity. The 7-foot standard aligns 
with building code and matches 
other jurisdictions (McMinnville 
and Woodburn) but is less than the 
8-foot standard that some cities 
allow for residential uses. See 
attached comparison table. 
 

Accessory 
Buildings for 
Institutional 
Uses in 
Residential 
Zones  
(p 21) 

15.415.010(C) Current code limits institutional 
uses in residential zones to 2 
accessory buildings which can be 
inadequate for schools, parks and 
church uses. These uses 
sometimes require multiple 
structures for grounds 
maintenance equipment, 
greenhouses, athletic facilities, 
workshops and similar 
operational needs. Based on a 
review of selected institutional 
uses in residential zones 

Amended to allow more than two 
accessory structures provided 
current standards are met, including 
25-foot setback, height limit 16 feet 
in R-1, R-3, AR, and R-P zones, 
except up to 800 square feet of 
an accessory building may have a 
height of up to 24 feet, and at least 
15 percent of the site must be 
landscaped. Together, these 
standards should mitigate any 
concerns from having more than 

Fence Height 
(pp 18-20)



P a g e  | 7 

 

 
 Newberg Community Development • 414 E First Street, Newberg, OR 97132 • 503-537-1240 • www.newbergoregon.gov 

Topic (Page) Newberg 
Municipal Code 

Issue Code Amendment Concept 

(attached), the number of 
accessory structures ranges from 
1-9, with average lot coverage by 
these structures typically less 
than 1%.  
 

two institutional accessory 
structures on a site in these zones.  
 

Utility 
Undergrounding 
Exception for 
Maintenance 
Work; and Type 
III Projects 
(p 22) 

15.430.010 The existing standards for 
undergrounding of utilities do 
not address work for utility pole 
relocations or new poles required 
for maintenance. This is work by 
a utility company that is separate 
from a development project and 
is subject to franchise utility 
agreements with the City, per 
NMC 12.05.350.  

Amended 15.430 to exempt from 
utility undergrounding 
requirements maintenance work 
under franchise utility agreements 
per 12.05.350. Also amended 
clarify Type III projects may be 
subject to the underground 
requirement, including 
developments requiring approval of 
conditional use permit, planned unit 
development, etc. 

Signs >20 feet 
in Height 
(pp 23-24) 

15.435.050(C) Code lacks standards for signs 
greater than 20 feet in height. It 
could be interpreted that they 
only must meet the minimum 
setback for buildings which 
would put them closer to the 
property line than signs less than 
20 feet in height in most cases. 
Staff interprets this to mean 
signs greater than 20 feet in 
height are not allowed except for 
lots greater than 10 acres. 

Amended 15.435.050(C) to clarify 
signs greater than 20 feet in height 
are prohibited except on lots that 
are at least 10 acres in size in zones 
other than residential, C-1, and I, 
and that meet specific setback and 
street frontage standards, per 
existing code. 

Parking Table 
Reference to 
Multiple Single-
Family 
Dwellings On a 
Lot 
(p 25) 

15.440.030 The Parking Table refers to 
“Dwelling, multifamily and 
multiple single-family 
dwellings on a single lot”, which 
is no longer valid. These would 
be a detached Duplex, Triplex, 
Quadplex or Cottage Cluster, 
depending on the number of 
dwelling units. 

Amended Residential portion of 
Parking Table in 15.440.030 to 
delete "and multiple single-family 
dwellings on a single lot".  

Americans With 
Disabilities Act 
References in 
Development 
Code 
(pp 25-26; 
28-29) 

15.435.140 
15.505.030  

Title 15 references Americans 
With Disabilities Act (ADA), 
which is regulated by the 
Building Code and Engineering 
Design and Construction 
Standards. This has caused 
conflicts. Title 15 requires public 
improvements and per State land 

Amended two sections to delete 
ADA standard and replaced with 
Editor Notes.  



P a g e  | 8 

 

 
 Newberg Community Development • 414 E First Street, Newberg, OR 97132 • 503-537-1240 • www.newbergoregon.gov 

Topic (Page) Newberg 
Municipal Code 

Issue Code Amendment Concept 

use rules, and the ADA is a 
federal law with rules ensuring 
buildings and sites are accessible 
to persons with disabilities. 

Home 
Occupations  
>1 Outside 
Employee 
(pp 27 and 13) 

15.445.500 Special 
Use Standards for 
Home Occupations 
15.305.020 (Zoning 
Use Table); and 

The Zoning Use Table allows 
home occupations with more 
than one outside employee on 
premises with a Conditional Use 
Permit, but Special Use 
Standards say no more than one 
outside employee is permitted. 

Amended code to clarify that more 
than one outside employee on 
premises may be permitted with a 
Conditional Use Permit. Text in 
15.445.500 Special Use Standards 
and 15.305.020 Zoning Use Table 
are now consistent. 

Title 15, Division 15.500 – Development Standards 

Public 
Walkway 
Easement and 
Paved Surface 
(p 28-29) 

15.505.030(O)(4) 15.505.030(O)(4) conflicts with 
15.505.030(S). 

Revised (O)(4) to refer to (S) for 
easement width and paved surface 
width requirements and replaced 
ADA standard in (S) with Ed Note. 

 

  



P a g e  | 9 

 

 
 Newberg Community Development • 414 E First Street, Newberg, OR 97132 • 503-537-1240 • www.newbergoregon.gov 

 

 

PLANNING COMMISSION RESOLUTION 2025-400  

 

 A RESOLUTION RECOMMENDING CITY COUNCIL AMEND NEWBERG MUNICIPAL 

CODE, TITLE 15 DEVELOPMENT CODE, TO CLARIFY REGULATIONS, COMPLY WITH 

STATE LAND USE REQUIREMENTS, AND IMPROVE CUSTOMER SERVICE IN THE 

PERMIT PROCESS  

RECITALS 

1. Code Maintenance is part of the Community Development Department’s continuous 
improvement efforts and is a “Significant Project” priority on the 2025 Planning Division 
Work Program.  
 

2. Code Maintenance implements City Council’s Goal to, “Create and maintain a high level 
of customer service”, including improving predictability in the permit process.  
 

3. The proposed code amendments were identified by staff through use and application of 
the code and customer feedback. 
 

4. Code Maintenance amendments do not involve significant policy changes. 
 
5. The Newberg Planning Commission conducted a duly noticed public hearing on 

September 11, 2025, considered public testimony, deliberated, and found the proposed 
amendments to be consistent with the Newberg Comprehensive Plan and Oregon 
Statewide Land Use Goals, and in the best interests of the City. 

The Newberg Planning Commission resolves as follows: 

1. The Planning Commission of the City of Newberg recommends the City Council adopt 
the proposed amendments to NMC Title 15 Development Code and Title 12 Streets and 
Sidewalks as contained in Exhibit A-1, attached hereto.  

2. The Planning Commission adopts the Findings in Exhibit A-2, attached hereto. 

  



P a g e  | 10 

 

 
 Newberg Community Development • 414 E First Street, Newberg, OR 97132 • 503-537-1240 • www.newbergoregon.gov 

Adopted by the Newberg Planning Commission this 11 day of September 2025. 

        ATTEST: 

 
Planning Commission Chair     Planning Commission Secretary 

 
 
List of Exhibits: 
 

A-1 Development Code Amendments 
A-2 Findings 

 
  



P a g e  | 11 

 

 
 Newberg Community Development • 414 E First Street, Newberg, OR 97132 • 503-537-1240 • www.newbergoregon.gov 

Exhibit A-1 to Resolution No. 2025-400 
Development Code Amendments – File DCA25-0002 

 

 
 
 

  



P a g e  | 12 

 

 
 Newberg Community Development • 414 E First Street, Newberg, OR 97132 • 503-537-1240 • www.newbergoregon.gov 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

[divider page intentionally blank] 

  



Resolution 2025-400 - Exhibit A-1 
2025 Code Maintenance Amendments | Tuesday, August 26, 2025 

 

1 | P a g e  
 

 
DCA25-0002: 2025 Code Maintenance Package 
Draft Code Maintenance Amendments 
 
Formatting of amendments: 
 

 Code edits and revisions are indicated using double underline for text additions and 
strike-outs text for deletions.  

 Backslashes “\\” indicate text that is unchanged and has been omitted for brevity. 

 Ellipses […] indicate the text continues but is not edited beyond this point. 

 The comments in text boxes summarize the proposed changes and the reasons for them.  

  



Resolution 2025-400 - Exhibit A-1 
2025 Code Maintenance Amendments | Tuesday, August 26, 2025 

 

2 | P a g e  
 

 
TABLE OF CONTENTS 

 
NMC 15.05    General Provisions ................................................................................................... 3 

15.05.030    Definitions............................................................................................................... 3 

NMC 15.100    Land Use Processes and Procedures ...................................................................... 4 

15.100.020 Type I procedure – Administrative decision. ........................................................... 4 

15.100.220    Additional notice procedures of Type II development applications ..................... 5 

15.220.020    Type I adjustments and approval criteria. ............................................................. 6 

NMC 15.220 Site Design Review ................................................................................................... 7 

15.220.020    Site design review applicability. ........................................................................... 7 

NMC 15.235 Land Divisions .......................................................................................................... 9 

15.235.030    Preliminary plat approval process. ........................................................................ 9 

15.235.070    Final plat submission requirements and approval criteria. ................................... 9 

NMC 15.240 PD Planned Unit Development Regulations ........................................................... 11 

15.240.020    General provisions. ............................................................................................. 11 

NMC 15.305    Zoning Use Table................................................................................................. 12 

NMC 15.326    Springbrook (SD) District .................................................................................... 14 

15.326.025 Springbrook Master Plan Develop Standards Matrix ............................................ 14 

NMC 15.410 Yard Setback Requirements.................................................................................... 16 

NMC 15.415 Building and Site Design Standards ....................................................................... 21 

15.415.010 Main buildings and uses as accessory buildings .................................................... 21 

NMC 15.430 Underground Utility Installation ............................................................................. 22 

15.430.010 Underground utility installation ............................................................................. 22 

NMC 15.435 Signs........................................................................................................................ 23 

15.435.050 Major Freestanding Signs. ..................................................................................... 23 

NMC 15.440 Off-Street Parking, Bicycle Parking, and Private Walkways ................................. 25 

15.435.140 Private Walkway Design........................................................................................ 25 

NMC 15.445 Special Use Standards ............................................................................................. 27 

15.445.500 Home Occupation. ................................................................................................. 27 

NMC 15.505 Public Improvement Standards ............................................................................... 28 

 
 
 

Appendix A - Figures.................................................................................................................... 



Resolution 2025-400 - Exhibit A-1 
2025 Code Maintenance Amendments | Tuesday, August 26, 2025 

 

3 | P a g e  
 

NMC 15.05    General Provisions 

15.05.030    Definitions. 

// 
 
“Building height” (“height”) means the vertical distance from the grade to the highest point of 
the coping of a flat roof or the deck line of a mansard roof. or to the average height of the highest 
gable of a pitch or hip roof, or for fences, retaining walls, and other structures to the highest 
point of the structure. See Appendix A, Figures 23 and 24. 

 
// 
 
“Cottage cluster” means a grouping of no fewer than four detached dwelling units per acre, each 
with a footprint of less no more than 900 square feet, located on a single lot or parcel that 
includes a common courtyard. Cottage cluster may also be known as “cluster housing,” “cottage 
housing,” “bungalow court,” “cottage court,” or “pocket neighborhood.” 

 
// 
“Dwelling, mixed use” means a dwelling on a lot that has separate nonresidential uses within the 
same building on the same lot, such as an apartment provided on a second floor of a commercial 
building. “Mixed-use dwelling” excludes a caretaker dwelling.  
 

 
// 
 
“Family” means (1) one or more persons related by blood, marriage, domestic partnership, legal 
adoption or guardianship, plus not more than five additional persons, who live together in one 
dwelling unit or (2) one or more handicapped persons as defined in the Fair Housing 
Amendments Act of 1988, plus not more than five additional persons, any number of individuals 
regardless of familial or non-familial relationship who live together in one dwelling unit. 
 

Staff Comment: Clarifies “height” applies to structures other than buildings. See also, amendment to 
NMC 15.410.070(D) relating to height of fences and walls. 
 

Staff Comment: Corrects inconsistency with NMC 15.415.050 which states cottages cannot exceed 
900 square feet, a difference of one square foot. 
 

Staff Comment: This clarifies that a mixed-use dwelling comprises a dwelling and another main use 
(one that is not a residential or accessory use) within the same building. Other definitions address two 
main uses on the same lot that are not within the same building. See also, amendments to NMC 
15.415.010(B) and NMC 15.305.020. 
 



Resolution 2025-400 - Exhibit A-1 
2025 Code Maintenance Amendments | Tuesday, August 26, 2025 

 

4 | P a g e  
 

 

NMC 15.100    Land Use Processes and Procedures 
 

15.100.020 Type I procedure – Administrative decision. 

A. Type I development actions shall be decided by the director without public notice or 
public hearing. Notice of a decision shall be provided to the applicant. There are two 
subcategories of Type I actions. Except as otherwise required by this code, actions indicated with 
an asterisk (*) do not require a land use application and are processed concurrently with any 
application for a building permit or business license unless no such permit is required. All other 
actions listed in this subsection require a Type I land use application which must be approved 
before building permits or a business license may be issued for the project or use. 
 

B. Type I actions include, but are not limited to: 

1. Design review permits for single-family dwellings, duplex dwellings, triplex dwellings, 
quadplex dwellings, townhouses, cottage cluster projects, additions, accessory dwelling units, 
accessory structures, or other additions specifically listed in NMC 15.220.020(A)(1). 

2. Home occupation permits.* 

3. Signs, not in conjunction with a new development or major remodel.* 

4. Adjustments. 

5. Processing final land division maps and plats. 

6. Manufactured homes contributing to development identified elsewhere in this subsection (B) 
or other additions specifically listed in NMC 15.220.020(A)(1). 

7. Determining compliance with the conditions of approval for a land use action processed under 
a Type II or Type III procedure. 

 

Staff Comments: This amendment makes the general procedures section consistent with 

existing site design review procedures for signs in NMC 15.220.020(A)(1) and streamlines and 

reduces the cost of permitting for home occupations. 

Staff Comment: This to comply with ORS 90.112 and ORS 197.015. “A maximum occupancy limit 
may not be established or enforced by any local government, as defined in ORS 197.015 (Definitions 
for ORS chapters 195, 196, 197 and 197A), for any residential dwelling unit, as defined in ORS 90.100 
(Definitions), if the restriction is based on the familial or nonfamilial relationships among any 
occupants.” (ORS 90.112)  



Resolution 2025-400 - Exhibit A-1 
2025 Code Maintenance Amendments | Tuesday, August 26, 2025 

 

5 | P a g e  
 

15.100.220    Additional notice procedures of Type II development applications 

 
In addition to the requirements of NMC 15.100.210, mailed notice for development actions shall 
also contain the following: 

A. Provide a 14-day period from the date of mailing for the submission of written comments 
prior to the decision; 

B. State that issues that may provide a basis for appeal must be raised in writing during the 
comment period; 

C. State that issues must be raised with sufficient specificity to enable the local government to 
respond to the issue; 

D. State the place, date and time that comments are due; 

E. State that notice of the decision, including an explanation of appeal rights, will be provided to 
any person who submits comments under subsection (A) of this section; 

F. Briefly summarize the local decision-making process. 

G. Type II notice for subdivisions shall also include a description of how an interested party may 
request a public hearing before the planning commission. 

Staff Comments: This is a change to comply with state law. Land division applications cannot be 

“elevated” to public hearing unless appealed, per ORS 197.195, as amended by Senate Bill 1537, Section 

45 (2024). See also, amendment to NMC 15.235.030(A)(6). 

 
  



Resolution 2025-400 - Exhibit A-1 
2025 Code Maintenance Amendments | Tuesday, August 26, 2025 

 

6 | P a g e  
 

15.220.020    Type I adjustments and approval criteria. 

 

Background: The following amendments include minor policy changes and clarifications to 
streamline the permit process and improve customer service for more types of minor projects and 
decisions, consistent with state law, the Comprehensive Plan, and Council Goals. These also 
address compliance with state law. 

 
The director may authorize adjustments from the following requirements through a Type I 
procedure subject to the following: 

A. Yard Setback Dimensions, Lot Area, Percentage of Lot Coverage, Parking Coverage, and Lot 
Dimensions. 

1. The director may approve adjustments to: 

a. Setbacks/Street Trees. Maximum adjustment of 25 percent of the dimensional 
standards for front yard setback requirements and the spacing of street trees. 

b. Lot Area. Maximum adjustment of five percent of the lot area required, A lot area 
except that an adjustment shall not be granted, thereby if it would allowing a greater 
number of dwelling units than that permitted without the adjustment. 

c. Percentage of Lot Coverage and Parking Coverage. Maximum adjustment of two 
percent more than the standard permitted for all land uses, except the maximum 
parking area coverage for uses in the R-3 districts may be increased by up to 50 
percent. 

d. Lot Dimensions. Maximum of 10 percent of the required lot dimensions or 
frontages. 

Staff Comments: The code amendment clarifies that code adjustments can be applied to parking 
coverage outside of the R-3 district, which appears to be the intent. Situations that justify minor 
increases in lot coverage also apply to parking adjustments, and the applicable standards for 
these adjustments (preservation of natural features; adequate light, air, and privacy; and 
emergency access, etc.) ensure that they do not negatively impact neighbors. 

 
  



Resolution 2025-400 - Exhibit A-1 
2025 Code Maintenance Amendments | Tuesday, August 26, 2025 

 

7 | P a g e  
 

NMC 15.220 Site Design Review 

15.220.020    Site design review applicability. 

 
A. Applicability of Requirements. Site design review shall be required prior to issuance of 
building permits or commencement of work for all improvements noted below. Site design 
review permits shall be processed as either Type I or Type II, as noted below. 

1. Type I. There are two subcategories of Type I site design review. Except as otherwise 
required by this code, uses listed in this subsection and indicated with an asterisk (*) do not 
require a land use application and are processed concurrently with any application for a 
building permit when such permit is required. All other uses listed in this subsection 
require a Type I land use application which must be approved before building permits may 
be issued for the project. 

// 

g. Institutional, commercial or industrial building additions which do not exceed 1,000 
square feet or 10 percent of the gross floor area of an existing structure, whichever is 
greater, except as required by this code; 

// 

j. New construction of any type that is accessory to an existing use on a developed 
site, does not add more than 1,000 square feet to an improved portion of the lot, or 10 
percent of the gross floor area of an existing structure, whichever is greater, and does 
not add dwelling units; 

k. Signs which are not installed in conjunction with a new development or remodel*; 

Staff Comments: Current practices is to review sign permits with a building permit to 
ensure code compliance, not a separate design review. Other subsections that are 
unmodified, above and below, are provided for context. 

l. Parking area modifications, including new paving, landscaping, lighting, restriping 
that adds, reduces, or reconfigures a parking space or drive aisle, or regrading of an 
existing multifamily, institutional, commercial or industrial parking lot. Does not 
include restriping, sealing, and similar maintenance and repair; 

m. Fences and trash enclosures*; 

n. Accessory dwelling units*. 

  



Resolution 2025-400 - Exhibit A-1 
2025 Code Maintenance Amendments | Tuesday, August 26, 2025 

 

8 | P a g e  
 

2. Type II. 

a. Any new development or remodel which is not specifically identified within 
subsection (A)(1) or (A)(3) of this section. 

b. Telecommunications facilities. 

3. Type III. 

a. Multifamily dwellings in the R-2, RP or C-4 zone not meeting the objective process 
requirements of NMC 15.220.060. 

b  a. Multifamily dwellings in the R-1, R-4 or C-2 zone (conditional use permit also 
required). 

c. b. Multifamily dwellings in the C-3 zone along Hancock Street (conditional use 
permit also required). 

Staff Comments: State law preempts local code. The City cannot require a Type III review for 
multifamily uses except where the applicant requests a discretionary review or a variance or 
conditional use permit is required. (ORS 197.015(12)(a)(B)) 

 

4. Exemptions to Type I and Type II Process. The following development activities are 
exempt from Type I or Type II standards: 

a. Replacement of an existing item such as a roof, floor, door, window or siding. 

b. Remodels that are completely internal to an existing structure and do not 
substantially change or expand the existing use of the structure. 

[…] 

  



Resolution 2025-400 - Exhibit A-1 
2025 Code Maintenance Amendments | Tuesday, August 26, 2025 

 

9 | P a g e  
 

NMC 15.235 Land Divisions 

15.235.030    Preliminary plat approval process. 

A. Review of Preliminary Plat. All preliminary plats are subject to the approval criteria in 
NMC 15.235.050. Preliminary plats shall be processed using the Type II procedure under 
Chapter 15.100 NMC, except that subdivisions with any of the following conditions present 
shall be processed using the Type III procedure under Chapter 15.100 NMC: 

1. The land is not fully within the city limits or urban growth boundary; 

2. The land contains Goal 5 resources which are mapped and designated in the 
comprehensive plan and land use regulations. These resources include but are not limited 
to open spaces, scenic and historic areas and natural resources; 

3. The proposed land division does not comply with the minimum street connectivity 
standards identified in NMC 15.505.030; 

4. The proposed land division does not provide enough lots or parcels to allow building 
residential units at 80 percent or more of the maximum net density permitted in the 
zoning designation for the site; 

5. The applicant requests, in writing and at the time of application, that the proposal be 
referred to the planning commission for a decision; or 

6. A written request for the application to be heard by the planning commission is 
submitted by a member of the public during the 14-day public comment period provided 
for in NMC 15.100.200 et seq. 

Staff Comments This is a change to comply with state law. Land division applications 

cannot be “elevated” to public hearing unless appealed, per ORS 197.195, as amended by 

Senate Bill 1537, Section 45 (2024). See also, amendment to NMC 15.235.030(A)(6). 

15.235.070    Final plat submission requirements and approval criteria. 

Final plats require review and approval by the director prior to recording with Yamhill County. 
The final plat submission requirements, approval criteria, and procedure are as follows: 

A. Submission Requirements. The applicant shall submit the final plat within two years, or as 
otherwise provided for in NMC 15.235.030. The format of the plat shall conform to ORS 
Chapter 92. The final plat application shall include the following items: 

1. One original and one identical copy of the final plat for signature. The plat copies shall 
be printed on mylar, and must meet the requirements of the county recorder and county 
surveyor. The plat must contain a signature block for approval by the city recorder and 
community development director, in addition to other required signature blocks for county 
approval. Preliminary paper copies of the plat are acceptable for review at the time of final 
plat application. 



Resolution 2025-400 - Exhibit A-1 
2025 Code Maintenance Amendments | Tuesday, August 26, 2025 

 

10 | P a g e  
 

2. Written response to any conditions of approval assigned to the land division describing 
how conditions of approval have been met. 

3. A title report for the property, current within six months of the final plat application date. 

4. Copies of any required dedications, easements, or other documents. 

5. Copies of all homeowner’s agreements, codes, covenants, and restrictions, or other 
bylaws, as applicable. This shall include documentation of the formation of a homeowner’s 
association, including but not limited to a draft homeowner’s association agreement 
regarding the maintenance of planter strips adjacent to the rear yard of proposed through 
lots. 

6. Copies of any required maintenance agreements for common property. 

7. A bond, as approved by the city engineer, for public infrastructure improvements, if the 
improvements are not substantially complete prior to the final plat. 

87. Any other item required by the city to meet the conditions of approval assigned to the 
land division, including documentation of closeout of the Public Improvement Permit for 
any required public infrastructure improvements. 

B. Approval Process and Criteria. By means of a Type I procedure, the director shall review and 
approve, or deny, the final plat application based on findings of compliance or noncompliance 
with the preliminary plat conditions of approval. 

 
Staff Comments: Bond reference in 15.235.070(A)(7) does not align with 15.235.060 and current 
practice for the Public Improvement Permit closeout prior to the final plat. All required public 
infrastructure improvements are required to be fully complete prior to final plat approval. Section 
15.235.060(B) addresses early issuance of residential building permits prior to final plat when certain 
criteria is met. 

 

  



Resolution 2025-400 - Exhibit A-1 
2025 Code Maintenance Amendments | Tuesday, August 26, 2025 

 

11 | P a g e  
 

NMC 15.240 PD Planned Unit Development Regulations 

15.240.020    General provisions. 

// 

Q. Design Standards. The proposed development shall meet the design requirements for 
multifamily residential projects identified in NMC 15.220.060. For non-multifamily 
developments only the provisions that apply must be addressed. A minimum of 40 percent of 
the required points shall be obtained in each of the design categories.  

Staff Comments: Text is unclear of whether design standards in 15.220.060 apply to PUDS that 
do not contain multi-family development. Past practice is that they do. This to provide clarification 
that regardless of planned building type, they must comply with the relevant provisions of 
15.220.060 

 

  



Resolution 2025-400 - Exhibit A-1 
2025 Code Maintenance Amendments | Tuesday, August 26, 2025 

 

12 | P a g e  
 

NMC 15.305    Zoning Use Table 
 

Staff Comments: Amendments to Zoning Use Table begin on next page. 
 



Draft Code Maintenance Amendments 
Table Pages 

Wednesday, August 6, 2025 
 
  15.305.020 Zoning use table – Use districts. 

# Use R-1 R-2 R-3 R-4 RP C-1 C-2 C-3 C-4 M-E M-1 M-2 M-3 
M-4-
I 

M-4-
C 

M-5 CF I AR AI 
Notes and Special 
Use Standards 

200 RESIDENTIAL 
USES 

                                          

Def. Dwelling, mixed use          P P(9) P(10) P(8)/C(5) P(11) X C C       P(10)           

Def. Home occupation (no 
more than one 
outside paid 
employee) 

S S S(13) S S S(13) S(13) S(13) S(13) X S(13) S(13) S(13) S(13) S(13)   S(13) S S S(13) NMC 15.445.500 

Def. Home occupation 
(more than one 
outside paid 
employee) 

C C C(13) C C C(13) C(13) C(13) C(13) X C(13) C(13) C(13) C(13) C(13)   C(13) C C C(13) NMC 15.445.500 

300 INSTITUTIONAL AND PUBLIC 
USES 

                                      

310 INSTITUTIONAL CARE AND 
HOUSING 

                                    

Def. Family child care 
home 

P P P(13) P(13) P P(13) P(13) P(13) P(13) X           P(13)   P P(13)   ORS Chapter 657 
329A 

312 Day care P P P C P P P P   P P P C C P P   P   P(14) ORS Chapter 657 
329A 

 

Key:     

P: Permitted use S: Special use – Use requires a special use permit   

C: Conditional use – Requires a conditional use 
permit 

X: Prohibited use (#): See notes for limitations 

 
Notes. 

 (13) Permitted in existing dwelling units only. New dwelling units may not be created for this use unless the dwelling unit would otherwise be allowed 

 

Staff Comments for Zoning Use Table: For the following revisions, 

 Mixed Use Dwelling added as a permitted use in RP district. The purpose of the RP district is to provide for a desirable 
mixing of residential land uses with medical and local business offices. The omission of mixed use dwelling from the RP 
zone is in conflict with the purpose of the zone. See also, amendment to NMC 15.05.030 Definition of Dwelling, Mixed 
Use. 

 Family child care and day care uses updated to have correct state law reference to ORS 329A. 
 The existing “Home occupation (no more than one outside paid employee)” text is provided for reference. See also, 

proposed amendment to NMC 15.445.500 Special Use Standards for Home Occupations for consistency with the Use Table. 



Resolution 2025-400 - Exhibit A-1 
2025 Code Maintenance Amendments | Tuesday, August 26, 2025 

 

14 | P a g e  
 

NMC 15.326    Springbrook (SD) District 

15.326.025 Springbrook Master Plan Develop Standards Matrix 

 

Staff Comment: The only amendments to the Springbrook District standards are to clarify the 
garage setback standard as it applies to garages that receive access from a shared drive. See also, 
the amendment to NMC 15.410.020(A). Table begins on next page. 

 
  



Draft Code Maintenance Amendments 
Wednesday, August 6, 2025 

DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS MATRIX 

// 
 

DEVELOPMENT 
STANDARDS 

LOW DENSITY 

RESIDENTIAL 

MID – RISE 

RESIDENTIAL 

NEIGHBORHOOD 

COMMERCIAL 

EMPLOYMENT VILLAGE HOSPITALITY 

LOT REQUIREMENTS 

FRONT YARD SETBACK Minimum 15 feet, except minimum 
10 feet for porches and similar entry 
features. Minimum 20 feet for 
garage subject to standards of NMC 
15.410.020(A). 

R-3 
Minimum 20 feet for garage subject 
to standards of NMC 15.410.020(A) 

C-1 No minimum No minimum setback. No 
maximum setback, if area between 
building and property line contains 
public space or landscaping 

Minimum 20 feet or equal to height 
of building, if adjacent to residential 
uses 

INTERIOR YARD SETBACKS R-1 R-3 10 feet if abutting residential zones M-1 C-3 Minimum 20 feet 

SETBACKS AND YARD 

RESTRICTIONS AS TO SCHOOLS, 
CHURCHES, PUBLIC BUILDINGS 

        Does not apply   

MINIMUM LOT AREA Minimum 2,900 square feet, except: 
Minimum 1,500 square feet for 
attached dwelling units 
Minimum 4,500 square feet for 
triplex dwellings 
Minimum 7,000 square feet for 
quadplex dwellings and cottage 
clusters 

Minimum 1,800 square feet, except: 
Minimum 1,500 square feet for 
attached dwelling units 
Minimum 4,500 square feet for 
triplex dwellings 
Minimum 6,000 square feet for 
quadplex dwellings and cottage 
clusters 

C-1 M-1 C-3 (Minimum 1,800 square feet) Minimum 5,000 square feet 

MINIMUM LOT DIMENSIONS The standard City lot frontage 
requirement applies 
Minimum lot width shall be 32 feet, 
except minimum 20 feet for middle 
housing dwelling units 

The standard City lot frontage 
requirement applies 

The standard City lot frontage 
requirement applies 

The standard City lot frontage 
requirement applies 

The standard City lot frontage 
requirement applies 

The standard City lot frontage 
requirement applies 

 

[…] 
      

 



Resolution 2025-400 - Exhibit A-1 
2025 Code Maintenance Amendments | Friday, August 29, 2025 

 

16 | P a g e  
 

NMC 15.410 Yard Setback Requirements 
15.410.020 Front yard setback. 
A. Residential (see Appendix A, Figure 10). 

1. AR, R-1 and R-2 districts shall have a front yard of not less than 15 feet, except that 
multifamily dwellings with parking to the side or rear shall have a front yard of not less than 
10 feet. Said yard shall be landscaped and maintained. 

2. R-3 and RP districts shall have a front yard of not less than 12 feet, except that 
multifamily dwellings with parking to the side or rear shall have a front yard of not less than 
eight feet. Said yard shall be landscaped and maintained. 

3. The vehicle entrance to a garage or carport, whether or not attached to a dwelling, shall be 
set back at least 20 feet from the nearest property line of the street from which access will be 
provided, or from the closest shared driveway, as applicable;. Hhowever, the foregoing 
setback requirement shall not apply where the garage or carport will be provided with access 
to an alley only. Where a garage is placed less than 20 feet from an abutting street under this 
standard a minimum of 10 percent of the surface area of the street-facing façade of that 
garage must include windows or entrance doors to avoid the appearance of blank walls (See 
Appendix A, Figure 37). 

[…] 
 

Staff Comment: The amendments clarify the garage setback standard as it applies to garages 
that receive access from a shared drive and add a design standard to avoid the appearance of a 
blank garage wall close to the street. For a garage that is 24 feet deep with a ceiling height of 8 
feet, the surface area of the corresponding side wall would be approximately 192 square feet, of 
which 10% or 19 square feet would be comprised of windows. The design and placement of 
windows is flexible to maintain a garage’s functionality for parking and storage. 

 

B. Commercial. 

1. All lots or development sites in the C-1 district shall have a front yard of not less than 10 
feet. There shall be no minimum front yard setback for C-1 zoned property that has frontage 
on E. Portland Road or Highway 99 W. The maximum front yard setback for C-1 zoned 
property that has frontage on E. Portland Road or Highway 99 W. shall be no greater than 10 
feet except as allowed by 15.410.020(B)(5). A greater front yard setback is allowed for C-1 
zoned property having frontage on E. Portland Road or Highway 99 W. when a plaza or 
other pedestrian amenity is provided; however, said front yard setback should be the 
minimum setback needed to accommodate a pedestrian amenity. Said yard shall be 
landscaped and maintained. 

2. All lots or development sites in the C-2 district shall have a front yard of not less than 10 
feet. There shall be no minimum front yard setback for C-2 zoned property that has frontage 
on E. Portland Road or Highway 99 W. The maximum front yard setback for C-2 zoned 
property that has frontage on E. Portland Road or Highway 99 W. shall be no greater than 10 



Resolution 2025-400 - Exhibit A-1 
2025 Code Maintenance Amendments | Friday, August 29, 2025 

 

17 | P a g e  
 

feet except as allowed by 15.410.020(B)(5). A greater front yard setback is allowed for C-2 
zoned property having frontage on E. Portland Road or Highway 99W when a plaza or other 
pedestrian amenity is provided; however, said front yard setback should be the minimum 
setback needed to accommodate a pedestrian amenity. No parking shall be allowed in said 
yard. Said yard shall be landscaped and maintained.  

3. All lots or development sites in the C-3 district shall have no minimum front yard 
requirements. The maximum allowable front yard shall be 20 feet except as allowed by 
15.410.020(B)(5). In the case of a through lot with two front yards, at least one front yard 
must meet the maximum setback requirement. In the case of three or more front yards, at 
least two front yards must meet the maximum setback requirements. No parking shall be 
allowed in said yard. Said yard shall be landscaped and maintained. 

4. All lots or development sites in the C-4 district will comply with the front yard 
requirements described in NMC 15.352.040(E). 

5. The maximum front yard setbacks in NMC 15.410.020(B) do not apply where an existing 
building, public utility easement, lot dimensions, topography, or similar site constraint 
beyond the applicant’s control make compliance with the standard infeasible.  

 

Staff Comment: The amendments address situations where it is not possible to comply with the 
maximum front yard setback due to existing development patterns or other site constraints. This is a 
frequent issue with commercially zoned properties adjacent to Highway 99W. Currently, a variance is 
the only remedy and the City consistently approves such variances. 
 

 

\\ 
 
15.410.030 Interior yard setback. 
A. Residential. 

1. All lots or development sites in the AR, R-1, R-2 and R-3 districts shall have interior 
yards of not less than five feet, except that where a utility easement is recorded adjacent to a 
side lot line, there shall be a side yard no less than the width of the easement. 

2. All lots or development sites in the RP district shall have interior yards of not less than 
eight feet. 

3. All lots with townhouse dwellings shall have no minimum interior yard setback where 
units are attached. 

4. All lots with new multifamily dwellings shall have interior yards of not less than eight feet 
adjacent to lot lines shared with existing single-family dwellings. All other multifamily 
dwellings shall meet the provisions of subsection (A)(1) of this section. 

B. Commercial. 



Resolution 2025-400 - Exhibit A-1 
2025 Code Maintenance Amendments | Friday, August 29, 2025 

 

18 | P a g e  
 

1. All lots or development sites in the C-1 and C-2 districts have no interior yards required 
where said lots or development sites abut property lines of commercially or industrially 
zoned property. When interior lot lines of said districts are common with property zoned 
residentially, institutional, or community facilities, interior yards of not less than 10 feet 
shall be required opposite the residential districts or community facilities district. 

2. All lots or development sites in the C-3 district shall have no interior yard requirements. 

3. All lots or development sites in the C-4 district will comply with the interior yard 
requirements described in NMC 15.352.040(E). 

C. Industrial and Mixed Employment. All lots or development sites in the AI, M-1, M-2, M-3, 
M-4, M-5, and M-E districts shall have no interior yards where said lots or development sites 
abut property lines of commercially or industrially zoned property. When interior lot lines of said 
districts are common with property zoned residentially, institutional, or community facilities, 
interior yards of not less than 10 feet shall be required opposite the residential, institutional, or 
community facilities districts. 

D. Institutional and Community Facility. All lots or development sites in the I and CF district 
shall have interior yards of not less than 10 feet, except outdoor activity facilities, such as pools, 
basketball courts, tennis courts, or baseball diamonds, including any accessory structures and 
uses, shall have an interior yard setback of 25 feet when abutting a residential district. 

E. Where an interior lot line abuts a lot that is not within the city limits of Newberg, the 
minimum interior yard setback is 5 feet for residential developments and 10 feet for 
nonresidential developments. 

Staff Comment: The amendments address the lack of an interior setback standard for lots that abut 
institutional or community facilities zones, or unincorporated lands (county zoning).  

 

15.410.070 Yard exceptions and permitted intrusions into required yard setbacks. 
The following intrusions may project into required yards to the extent and under the conditions 
and limitations indicated: 

// 

D. Fences and Walls. 

1. In the residential district, a fence or wall shall be permitted to be placed at the property 
line or within a yard setback as follows: 

a. Interior Yards. Not to exceed six seven feet in height. Located or maintained within the 
required interior yards. For purposes of fencing only, On lots that are corner lots or through 
lots, the property owner may select selects one of the street frontages as the as is a front 
yard for purposes of fence height regulation, and all other yards shall be considered 
as interior yards., allowing the placement of a six-foot fence on the property line. In no case 
may a fence extend into the clear vision zone as defined in NMC 15.410.060.  
 



Resolution 2025-400 - Exhibit A-1 
2025 Code Maintenance Amendments | Friday, August 29, 2025 

 

19 | P a g e  
 

 

Staff Comment: Updated to 7 feet to match nominal building code exemption which changed from 6 
feet to 7 feet in 2023. The standard also promotes privacy and good neighbor relations while reflecting 
industry standards among peer cities. See attached table comparing Newberg’s and other cities’ 
standards. 

 

b. Front Yards. Not to exceed four feet in height. See also NMC 410.070.a for fence 
height on corner lots and through lots.  Not to exceed four feet in height. Located or 
maintained within all other front yards. 

Staff Comment: Clarifies text and adds cross-reference to updated “height” definition. 

 

2. In any commercial, industrial, institutional, community facilities, or mixed employment 
district, a fence or wall shall be permitted to be placed at the property line or within a yard 
setback as follows: 

a. Interior Yards. Not to exceed eight feet in height within the required interior yards. On 
lots that are corner lots or through lots, the property owner may select selects one of 
the street frontages as the as is a front yard for purposes of fence height regulation, and 
all other yards shall be considered as interior yards. In no case may a fence extend into 
the clear vision zone as defined in NMC 15.410.060. Note that NMC 15.05.030 defines 
height is measured from grade, while height for purposes of building code applicability 
is measured from the bottom of the structure including footings or foundation.  
 

Staff Comment: Updated language for consistency with subsection 1 without changing the 8-foot 
height limitation.  

 

b. Front Yards. Not to exceed four feet in height. See also NMC 410.070.a for fence 
height on corner lots and through lots.   

a. Not to exceed eight feet in height. Located or maintained in any interior yard except 
where the requirements of vision clearance apply. For purposes of fencing only, lots that 
are corner lots or through lots may select one of the street frontages as a front yard and 
all other yards shall be considered as interior yards, allowing the placement of an eight-
foot fence on the property line. 

b. Not to exceed four feet in height. Located or maintained within all other front yards. 

// 

Staff Comment: Clarifies text for consistency with subsection 1 without changing the 4-foot 
height limitation. 

 



Resolution 2025-400 - Exhibit A-1 
2025 Code Maintenance Amendments | Friday, August 29, 2025 

 

20 | P a g e  
 

[Editor Note: NMC 15.05.030 defines height is measured from grade, while height for 
purposes of building code applicability is measured from the bottom of the structure 
including footings or foundation.] 

  



Resolution 2025-400 - Exhibit A-1 
2025 Code Maintenance Amendments | Friday, August 29, 2025 

 

21 | P a g e  
 

NMC 15.415 Building and Site Design Standards 

15.415.010 Main buildings and uses as accessory buildings 

 
A. Hereinafter, any building which is the only building on a lot is a main building. 

 
B. In any residential district except RP, there shall be only one main use per lot or 

development site; provided, that home occupations shall be allowed where permitted. 
 

C. In any residential district, there shall be no more than two accessory buildings on any lot 
or development site except that institutional uses may have more than two accessory 
buildings provided the 25-foot yard setback of NMC 15.410.030(D) and NMC 
15.410.040 and other applicable standards are met.  

 
Staff Comment: Current code limits institutional uses in residential zones to 2 accessory buildings 
which can be inadequate for schools, parks and church uses. These uses sometimes require multiple 
structures for grounds maintenance equipment, greenhouses, athletic facilities, workshops and similar 
operational needs. Based on a review of selected institutional uses in residential zones (attached), the 
number of accessory structures ranges from 0-9, with average lot coverage by these structures typically 
less than 1%.  
 
The code currently requires a 25-foot setback for schools, churches, and public, semi-public, and 
institutional uses in residential zones. Additionally, accessory buildings in the R-1, R-2, R-3, AR, and 
RP districts are limited to 16 feet in height, except up to 800 square feet of an accessory building may 
have a height of up to 24 feet. (NMC 15.415.020(A)(4)) At least 15 percent of the site must be 
landscaped. Together, these standards should mitigate any concerns from having more than two 
institutional accessory structures on a site in these zones. 
 

 
  



Resolution 2025-400 - Exhibit A-1 
2025 Code Maintenance Amendments | Friday, August 29, 2025 

 

22 | P a g e  
 

NMC 15.430 Underground Utility Installation 

15.430.010 Underground utility installation 

 
A. All new utility lines, including but not limited to electric, communication, natural gas, and 
cable television transmission lines, shall be placed underground. This does not include surface-
mounted transformers, connections boxes, meter cabinets, service cabinets, temporary facilities 
during construction, new poles and other facilities required for maintenance under franchise 
utility agreements, and high-capacity electric lines operating at 50,000 volts or above. 

B. Existing utility lines shall be placed underground when any of the following occur: 

1. tThey are relocated, unless required as maintenance subject to a franchise utility 
agreement,;  

2. or wWhen an addition or remodel requiring a Type II or Type III approval design 
review is proposed, ;or  

3. wWhen a developed area is annexed to the city. 

C. The director may make exceptions to the requirement to underground utilities based on one or 
more of the following criteria: 

1. The cost of undergrounding the utility is extraordinarily expensive. 

2. There are physical factors that make undergrounding extraordinarily difficult. 

3. Existing utility facilities in the area are primarily overhead and are unlikely to be 
changed.  

Staff Comment: The existing standards and exceptions for required undergrounding of utilities do not 
address work for utility pole relocations or new poles as required for maintenance. This is work by a 
utility company that is separate from a development project and is subject to a franchise utility 
agreement with the city per NMC 12.05.350. Subsection ‘B’ also omits projects that are subject to 
Type III review, including those that require conditional use permits or Planned Unit Development 
approvals, which should be included.  
 

 

  



Resolution 2025-400 - Exhibit A-1 
2025 Code Maintenance Amendments | Friday, August 29, 2025 

 

23 | P a g e  
 

NMC 15.435 Signs 

15.435.050 Major Freestanding Signs. 

 
A. Number. 

1. Residential, I, and CF Zones. One major freestanding sign is allowed on each street 
frontage, plus one sign for each full 600 feet of street frontage. Only one sign on each street 
frontage may be an animated sign. 

2. Other Zones. Not more than one major freestanding sign shall be located on any one 
street frontage. 

B. Size. 

1. Residential Zones. No major freestanding sign shall be larger than 0.2 square feet per 
foot of street frontage, up to a maximum of 50 square feet. At least six square feet of 
signage will be allowed. Major freestanding signs are not allowed on lots containing only 
one single-family dwelling or duplex. 

2. C-1 and I Zones. No major freestanding sign shall be larger than one-half square foot per 
foot of street frontage, up to a maximum of 100 square feet. At least 12 square feet of 
signage will be allowed. 

3. Other Zones. No major freestanding sign shall be larger than one square foot per foot of 
street frontage, up to a maximum of 100 square feet. At least 40 square feet of signage will 
be allowed. For any lot at least 10 acres in size with at least 200 feet of frontage on a street, 
the one sign on that street may be up to 200 square feet total size. 

C. Height and Setbacks. Freestanding signs regulated by this section are not subject to the 
setback requirements of NMC 15.410.010 through 15.410.070 or the projecting building features 
requirements of said sections. Height and setbacks of freestanding signs shall conform to the 
following height limitations and other requirements: 

1. C-3 Zone. No major freestanding signs shall be allowed greater than six feet in height. 

2. Other Zones.  

a. A sign up to three feet in height is not required to be set back from any property 
line. 

b. A sign taller than three feet and up to six feet shall be set back at least five feet from 
any property line. 



Resolution 2025-400 - Exhibit A-1 
2025 Code Maintenance Amendments | Friday, August 29, 2025 

 

24 | P a g e  
 

c. A sign taller than six feet and up to eight feet shall be set back at least 10 feet from 
any front property line and five feet from any interior property line. 

d. A sign taller than eight feet and up to 15 feet shall be set back at least 15 feet from 
any front property line and five feet from any interior property line. 

e. A sign taller than 15 feet and up to 20 feet shall be set back at least 20 feet from the 
front property line and five feet from any interior property line. 

f. A sign taller than 20 feet is not permitted except as provided by NMC 
15.435.050(C)(2)(g). 

f. g. A sign on a lot that is at least 10 acres in size in a zone other than residential, C-1, 
or I and that has at least 200 feet of frontage on a street may be up to 30 feet high, 
provided it is set back at least 20 feet from the front property line and at least 10 feet 
from any interior property line.  

Staff Comment: Current code omits setback standards for signs between 20-30 feet in height 
suggesting that they are not allowed except as provided in former subsection “f”. For reference, 30 feet 
is about the height of a 2½ story house. 

 

  



Resolution 2025-400 - Exhibit A-1 
2025 Code Maintenance Amendments | Friday, August 29, 2025 

 

25 | P a g e  
 

NMC 15.440 Off-Street Parking, Bicycle Parking, and Private 
Walkways 

Table 15.440.030(A) Minimum Parking Spaces Required and Maximum Parking Spaces Allowed by 

Use  

    
Maximum Parking Spaces 

Allowed*** 

  

Use 

Minimum 

Parking Spaces 

Required 

Uses fronting a 

street with 

abutting on- 

street parking 

Uses fronting 

no street with 

abutting on-

street parking 

Rate and Units 

Residential Types 

Dwelling, multifamily and multiple single-family dwellings on a single lot 

Studio or one-bedroom unit 1 1.2 1.5 Per dwelling unit 

Two-bedroom unit 1.5 1.8 2.25 Per dwelling unit 

Three- and four-bedroom 

units 

2 2.4 3 Per dwelling unit 

Five- or more bedroom unit 0.75 0.9 1.13 Spaces per 

bedroom 

 
Staff Comment: “Multiple single-family dwellings on a lot” are not a type of use anymore. They are 
now classified as units of middle housing (duplex. triplex, quadplex, cottage cluster). 

 

15.435.140 Private Walkway Design. 

 
A. All required private walkways shall meet the applicable building code and Americans with 
Disabilities Act requirements. 

AB. Required private walkways shall be a minimum of four feet wide. 

BC. Required private walkways shall be constructed of portland cement concrete or brick. 

CD. Crosswalks crossing service drives shall, at a minimum, be painted on the asphalt or clearly 
marked with contrasting paving materials or humps/raised crossings. If painted striping is used, it 
should consist of thermoplastic striping or similar type of durable application. 

DE. At a minimum, required private walkways shall connect each main pedestrian building 
entrance to each abutting public street and to each other. 

EF. The review body may require on-site walks to connect to development on adjoining sites. 



Resolution 2025-400 - Exhibit A-1 
2025 Code Maintenance Amendments | Friday, August 29, 2025 

 

26 | P a g e  
 

FG. The review body may modify these requirements where, in its opinion, the development 
provides adequate on-site pedestrian circulation, or where lot dimensions, existing building 
layout, or topography preclude compliance with these standards. [Ord. 2619, 5-16-05; Ord. 2513, 
8-2-99. Code 2001 § 151.620.3.] 

[Editorial Note: Compliance with Americans With Disabilities Act requirements under 
applicable building codes, and engineering design and construction standards for public 
improvements, is also required.] 

Staff Comment: Reference to ADA standards is removed from the Title 15 standards as ADA is 
regulated by the Building code or Engineering Design and Construction Standards. This has caused 
some confusion and conflict in the past. In its place, an editorial note is added. 
 

 

  



Resolution 2025-400 - Exhibit A-1 
2025 Code Maintenance Amendments | Friday, August 29, 2025 

 

27 | P a g e  
 

NMC 15.445 Special Use Standards 

15.445.500 Home Occupation. 

 
Home occupations shall be processed as a Type I procedure pursuant to 15.100.020. Home 
occupation uses shall comply with the following standards: 

A. Signs shall comply with the standards of NMC 15.435.010 et seq. 

B. There is no display that will indicate from the exterior that the building is used in whole or in 
part for any purpose other than a dwelling. 

C. The building retains the characteristics of a residence. 

D. There is no outside storage of materials, parts, tools, supplies, or other items related to the use 
as a home occupation, other than nursery plants. 

E. No more than one outside paid employee shall be permitted to work at the residence at any 
given time. A home occupation with more than one outside employee requires approval of a 
conditional use permit pursuant to NMC 15.305.020. 

F. The use does not destroy the residential character of the neighborhood. 

G. All work being performed at the site is done within the confines of a building and no noise, 
odor, dust, smoke or other evidence of the home occupation permeates beyond the confines of 
the property. 

H. The home occupation is incidental to the use of the building and site for residential purposes. 

I. The work does not involve the use of hazardous substances or materials which might create a 
fire hazard or danger to the environment or neighboring properties, including but not limited to 
gasoline, paint, oxygen/acetylene tanks, or other flammable or hazardous materials. [Ord. 2933 § 
1 (Exhs. A-1a, A-1b), 2-18-25.] 

Staff Comment: The conditional use edits are for consistency with the zoning use table which allows 
home occupations to have more than one outside employee with a conditional use permit. 

 
 
  



Resolution 2025-400 - Exhibit A-1 
2025 Code Maintenance Amendments | Friday, August 29, 2025 

 

28 | P a g e  
 

NMC 15.505 Public Improvement Standards 
15.505.030 Street Standards 
 
\\ 
 
O. Platting Standards for Blocks. 

// 

4. Public Pedestrian Walkways and Bicycle Access. The approval authority in approving a 
land use application with conditions may require a developer to provide an access way 
where the creation of a street consistent with street spacing standards is infeasible and the 
creation of a cul-de-sac or dead-end street is unavoidable. A public walkway provides a 
connection through a block that is longer than established standards or connects the end of 
the street to another right-of-way or a public access easement. A public walkway shall be 
contained within a public right-of-way or public access easement, as required by the city. A 
public walkway shall be a minimum of 10 feet wide and shall provide a minimum six-foot-
wide paved surface or other all-weather surface approved by the city (see subsection (S) of 
this section for public walkway standards). Public walkways shall meet the requirements of 
NMC 15.505.030(S). 

Design features should be considered that allow access to emergency vehicles but that 
restrict access to non-emergency motorized vehicles. 

Staff Comment: The above amendment is to have consistency in code regarding the requirements in 
public walkways. 

 

// 

S. Public Walkways. 
 
1. Projects subject to Type II design review, partition, or subdivision approval may be required to 
provide public walkways where necessary for public safety and convenience, or where necessary 
to meet the standards of this code. Public walkways are meant to connect cul-de-sacs to adjacent 
areas, to pass through oddly shaped or unusually long blocks, to provide for networks of public 
paths according to adopted plans, or to provide access to schools, parks or other community 
destinations or public areas. Where practical, public walkway easements and locations may also 
be used to accommodate public utilities. 
 
2. Public walkways shall be located within a public access easement that is a minimum of 15 feet 
in width. 
 



Resolution 2025-400 - Exhibit A-1 
2025 Code Maintenance Amendments | Friday, August 29, 2025 

 

29 | P a g e  
 

3. A walk strip, not less than 10 feet in width, shall be paved in the center of all public 
walkway easements. Such paving shall conform to specifications in the Newberg public works 
design and construction standards. 
 
4. Public walkways shall be designed to meet the Americans with Disabilities Act requirements. 
 
5.4. Public walkways connecting one right-of-way to another shall be designed to provide as 
short and straight of a route as practical. 
 
6.5. The developer of the public walkway may be required to provide a homeowners’ association  
or similar entity to maintain the public walkway and associated improvements. 
 
7.6. Lighting may be required for public walkways in excess of 250 feet in length. 
 
8.7. The review body may modify these requirements where it finds that topographic, preexisting 
development, or similar constraints exist. 
 
[Editorial Note: Compliance with Americans With Disabilities Act requirements under 
applicable building codes, and engineering design and construction standards for public 
improvements, is also required.] 
 

Staff Comment: Reference to ADA standards is removed from the Title 15 standards as ADA is 
regulated by the Building code or Engineering Design and Construction Standards. This has caused 
some confusion and conflict in the past. In its place, an editorial note is added. 

 
 

 
 

-END- 



Appendix A: Figures 

// 

Figure 36: Cottage Cluster Orientation and Common Courtyard Standard

 

 



Figure 37: Side Loaded Garages  

 

 

10% of Street Facing Façade must include windows and doors. 

 
A 



P a g e  | 13 

 

 
 Newberg Community Development • 414 E First Street, Newberg, OR 97132 • 503-537-1240 • www.newbergoregon.gov 

 
Exhibit A-2 to Resolution No. 2025-400 

Findings – File DCA25-0002 
 

 

A. Statewide Planning Goals  

 
GOAL 1: CITIZEN INVOLVEMENT 
To develop a citizen involvement program that ensures the opportunity for citizens to be 
involved in all phases of the planning process. 
 
Finding:  Amendments to Title 15 (Development Code) of the Newberg Municipal Code 
(NMC) are typically processed as a Type IV (Legislative) application and follow the 
procedures in NMC 15.100.060.  The Planning Commission will hold a public hearing on 
the application and make a recommendation to the Newberg City Council. Following the 
Planning Commission review, City Council will hold its own legislative public hearing to 
consider the amendments.  

Because the proposal is limited to maintenance amendments, public outreach is limited to 
required noticing of public hearings. Key dates for this application follow (tentative): 

07/10/2025 Planning Commission Work Session # (Code Concepts) 

08/07/2025  Notify State (DLCD) 35 days prior to first hearing 

08/14/2025 Planning Commission Work Session #2 (Draft Code) 

09/11/2025 Planning Commission Public Hearing 

10/06/2025 City Council Study Session 

10/20/2025 City Council Public Hearing - First Reading  

11/03/2025 City Council Public Hearing – Second Reading, if required 

The Goal is met. 

  



P a g e  | 14 

 

 
 Newberg Community Development • 414 E First Street, Newberg, OR 97132 • 503-537-1240 • www.newbergoregon.gov 

GOAL 2: LAND USE PLANNING 
To establish a land use planning process and policy framework as a basis for all 
decisions and actions related to use of land and to assure an adequate factual base for 
such decisions and actions. 
 
Finding: This Goal requires that land use decisions 1) have an adequate factual base, 2) 
that alternatives have been considered, and 3) that implementation measures are 
consistent with and adequate to carry out comprehensive plan policies and designations. 
The proposed code maintenance amendments are based on use and application of the 
development code and feedback from staff and development applicants. The Planning 
Commission considered alternatives discussed during the two public work sessions. 
These alternatives included alternative standards and procedures for issues relating to 
fences, accessory structures, and garage orientation and setbacks, among others, 
consistent with comprehensive plan economic development policies. The Goal is met. 

 
GOAL 3: AGRICULTURAL LANDS 
GOAL 4: FOREST LANDS 
 

Finding: Goals 3 and 4 are not applicable because the development code applies to lands 
inside the Newberg City Limits and lands within the Urban Growth Boundary that the 
City may annex pursuant to its comprehensive plan and Goal 14 (Urbanization). 

GOAL 5: NATURAL RESOURCES, SCENIC AND HISTORIC AREAS, AND OPEN 
SPACES 

 To protect natural resources and conserve scenic and historic areas and open spaces. 
 
Finding: The proposed amendments do not modify any land use regulation related to 
Goal 5. This Goal does not apply. 

 
GOAL 6: AIR, WATER AND LAND RESOURCES QUALITY 

 To maintain and improve the quality of the air, water and land resources of the state. 
 

Finding: Newberg has an acknowledged Comprehensive Plan that complies with this 
goal. Protections are already in place for air, water, and land resource quality, and this 
proposal does not modify them. This Goal is met. 

 
GOAL 7: AREAS SUBJECT TO NATURAL HAZARDS 

 To protect people and property from natural hazards. 
 

Finding: Newberg has an acknowledged Comprehensive Plan that complies with this 
goal. This proposal does not modify the City’s natural hazards requirements such as flood 
plain or landslide areas. This Goal is met. 
 



P a g e  | 15 

 

 
 Newberg Community Development • 414 E First Street, Newberg, OR 97132 • 503-537-1240 • www.newbergoregon.gov 

GOAL 8: RECREATIONAL NEEDS 
To satisfy the recreational needs of the citizens of the state and visitors and, where 
appropriate, to provide for the siting of necessary recreational facilities including 
destination resorts. 
 
Finding: Newberg has an acknowledged Comprehensive Plan that complies with this 
goal. This proposal does not modify the City’s recreational goals and policies. This Goal 
is met. 

 
GOAL 9: ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 
To provide adequate opportunities throughout the state for a variety of economic 
activities vital to the health, welfare, and prosperity of Oregon's citizens. 
 
Finding:  The proposed amendments focus on improving the permit process by clarifying 
and correcting the code, including updates to comply with state land use laws and process 
improvements that should help with housing production and economic development. For 
example, commercial infill developments were routinely required to receive variances to 
the maximum street setback standard due to conflicts with existing buildings and 
easements. The proposed code adds an exception to the setback to address these 
situations without a variance, saving time and costs in the permit process. Another 
example is the code amendment clarifying the procedure for permitting home 
occupations. This Goal is met. 
 
GOAL 10: HOUSING 
To provide for the housing needs of citizens of the state. 
 
Finding: The proposed amendments support production of needed housing by bringing 
city code into compliance with HB 1537 (2024) with respect to limited land use 
decisions. None of the amendments affect the city’s supply of land for housing or 
residential land uses, however. The Goal is met. 

 
GOAL 11: PUBLIC FACILITIES AND SERVICES 
To plan and develop a timely, orderly and efficient arrangement of public facilities and 
services to serve as a framework for urban and rural development.  
 
Finding: The proposed amendments focus on improving the permit process by clarifying 
the code, including for example standards requiring undergrounding of utilities and 
exceptions thereto. The proposal meets the Goal.  
 
GOAL 12: TRANSPORTATION 
To provide and encourage a safe, convenient and economic transportation system. 
 
Finding: The City of Newberg’s adopted Transportation System Plan (2016) has been 
acknowledged by DLCD. The transportation system is planned to accommodate the 



P a g e  | 16 

 

 
 Newberg Community Development • 414 E First Street, Newberg, OR 97132 • 503-537-1240 • www.newbergoregon.gov 

population growth of the community for a 20-year planning period.  There are no 
proposed modifications to the transportation system or transportation standards with the 
adoption of the proposed amendments. The proposed amendments do not significantly 
affect any transportation facility or change the functional classification of any street and 
therefore comply with OAR 660-012-0060 (Transportation Planning Rule). By clarifying 
existing private walkway standards with respect to Americans With Disabilities Act 
requirements, the code amendments support transportation efficient development 
consistent with OAR 660-012-0045 (Transportation Planning Rule). In conclusion, the 
amendments comply with Goal 12, and the provisions of OAR 660-012-0045 and 660-
012-0060 Transportation Planning Rule.  

 
GOAL 13: ENERGY CONSERVATION 
To conserve energy. 
 
Finding: The proposed amendments do not affect energy demands, though by providing 
alternative methods of calculating required parking, the amendments support 
transportation efficiency and energy conservation. This Goal is met.  

 
GOAL 14: URBANIZATION 
To provide for an orderly and efficient transition from rural to urban land use, to 
accommodate urban population and urban employment inside urban growth boundaries, 
to ensure efficient use of land, and to provide for livable communities.  
 
Finding: This goal does not apply. No code change is proposed to the City’s annexation 
or urban growth boundary requirements or procedures. 

 
GOAL 15: WILLAMETTE RIVER GREENWAY 
To protect, conserve, enhance and maintain the natural, scenic, historical, agricultural, 
economic and recreational qualities of lands along the Willamette River as the 
Willamette River Greenway. 
 
Finding: This goal does not apply. The proposed amendments do not alter any area or 
regulations within the boundaries of the Willamette River Greenway. This Goal is met. 

  



P a g e  | 17 

 

 
 Newberg Community Development • 414 E First Street, Newberg, OR 97132 • 503-537-1240 • www.newbergoregon.gov 

B. Newberg Comprehensive Plan 

 
II. GOALS AND POLICIES 

 
A. CITIZEN INVOLVEMENT 
GOAL: To maintain a Citizen Involvement Program that offers citizens the opportunity 
for involvement in all phases of the planning process. 
 
Finding: This Goal and its policies are met for the same reasons the proposal meets State 
Goal 1, as discussed in Part A. 

 
B. LAND USE PLANNING 
GOAL: To maintain an on-going land use planning program to implement statewide and 
local goals. The program shall be consistent with natural and cultural resources and 
needs. 
 
Finding: This Goal and its policies are met for the same reasons the proposal meets State 
Goal 2, as discussed in Part A. 

 
C. AGRICULTURAL LANDS  
GOAL: To provide for the orderly and efficient transition from rural to urban land uses. 
D. WOODED AREAS  
GOAL: To retain and protect wooded areas. 
 
Finding: These Goals are not applicable for the same reasons that State Goals 3 and 4 are 
no applicable, as discussed in Part A. 

 
E. AIR, WATER, AND LAND RESOURCE QUALITY  
GOAL: To maintain and, where feasible, enhance the air, water and land resource 
qualities within the community. 
 
Finding: This Goal and its policies are met for the same reasons the proposal meets State 
Goal 6, as discussed in Part A. 

 
F. AREAS SUBJECT TO NATURAL HAZARDS  
GOAL: To protect life and property from flooding and other natural hazards. 
 
Finding: This Goal and its policies are met for the same reasons the proposal meets State 
Goal 7, as discussed in Part A. 



P a g e  | 18 

 

 
 Newberg Community Development • 414 E First Street, Newberg, OR 97132 • 503-537-1240 • www.newbergoregon.gov 

 
G. OPEN SPACE, SCENIC, NATURAL, HISTORIC AND RECREATIONAL 
RESOURCES  
GOALS:  
1. To ensure that adequate land shall be retained in permanent open space use and that 
natural, scenic and historic resources are protected.  
2. To provide adequate recreational resources and opportunities for the citizens of the 
community and visitors.  
3. To protect, conserve, enhance and maintain the Willamette River Greenway. 
 
Finding: These Goals and related policies are met for the same reasons the proposal 
meets State Goal 5, as discussed in Part A. 

 
H. THE ECONOMY  
GOAL: To develop a diverse and stable economic base. 
1. General Policies 

a. In order to increase the percentage of persons who live in Newberg and work in 
Newberg, the City shall encourage a diverse and stable economic base. Potential 
methods may include, but are not limited to, land use controls and capital 
improvement programs. 

b. The City shall encourage economic expansions consistent with local needs 
c. The City will encourage creation the creation of a diversified employment base, 

the strengthening of trade centers and the attraction of both capital and labor 
intensive enterprises. 

d. Newberg will encourage the development of industries which represent the most 
efficient use of existing resources including land, air, water, energy and labor 

e. Economic expansion shall not exceed the carrying capacity of the air, water or 
land resource quality of the planning area. 

f. The City shall participate with local and regional groups to coordinate economic 
planning. 

g. The City shall encourage business and industry to locate within the Newberg City 
limits. 

h. Yamhill County history, products and activities should be promoted. 
i. The City shall encourage tourist-related activities and services such as motor 

inns, restaurants, parks and recreation facilities, a visitor center, conference and 
seminar activities. 

j. A mixed-use river-oriented commercial area should be encourage to be developed 
near the Willamette River. 

k. The City shall promote Newberg as a tourist destination location. 
l. The City shall promote the expansion of local viticulture and wine productions as 

a method for increasing tourism. 



P a g e  | 19 

 

 
 Newberg Community Development • 414 E First Street, Newberg, OR 97132 • 503-537-1240 • www.newbergoregon.gov 

Finding: This Goal and its policies are met for the same reasons the proposal meets 
State Goal 9, as discussed in Part A. 

J. URBAN DESIGN  
GOAL 1: To maintain and improve the natural beauty and visual character of the City. 
GOAL 2: To develop and maintain the physical context needed to support the livability 

and unique character of Newberg. 
 
Finding: By clarifying and correcting the code and making other updates to comply with 
state land use laws, the proposal facilitates well planned growth that maintains 
Newberg’s natural beauty, visual character, and livability. These Goals are met.  

 
K. TRANSPORTATION  
GOAL 1: Establish cooperative agreements to address transportation based planning, 
development, operation and maintenance. 
GOAL 2: Establish consistent policies which require concurrent consideration of 
transportation/land use system impacts. 
GOAL 3: Promote reliance on multiple modes of transportation and reduce reliance on 
the automobile. 
GOAL 4: Minimize the impact of regional traffic on the local transportation system. 
GOAL 5: Maximize pedestrian, bicycle and other non-motorized travel throughout the 
City. 
GOAL 6: Provide effective levels of non-auto oriented support facilities (e.g. bus shelters, 
bicycle racks, etc.). 
GOAL 8: Maintain and enhance the City's image, character and quality of life. 
GOAL 9: Create effective circulation and access for the local transportation system. 
GOAL 10: Maintain the viability of existing rail, water and air transportation systems. 
GOAL 11: Establish fair and equitable distribution of transportation improvement costs. 
GOAL 12: Minimize the negative impact of a Highway 99 bypass on the Newberg 
community. 
GOAL 13: Utilize the Yamhill County Transit Authority (YCTA) Transit Development 
Plan (TDP) as a Guidance Document. 
GOAL 14: Coordinate with Yamhill County Transit Area. 
GOAL 15: Implement Transit-Supportive Improvements. 
 
Finding: Where the above goals may apply, each goal and its policies are met for the 
same reasons the proposal meets State Goals 9 and 12, as discussed in Part A. 

  



P a g e  | 20 

 

 
 Newberg Community Development • 414 E First Street, Newberg, OR 97132 • 503-537-1240 • www.newbergoregon.gov 

 

L. PUBLIC FACILITIES AND SERVICES  
GOAL: To plan and develop a timely, orderly and efficient arrangement of public 
facilities and services to serve as a framework for urban development. 
 
Finding: This Goal and its policies are met for the same reasons the proposal meets State 
Goal 11, as discussed in Part A. 

 

M. ENERGY  
GOAL: To conserve energy through efficient land use patterns and energy- related 
policies and ordinances. 
 
Finding: This Goal and its policies are met for the same reasons the proposal meets State 
Goal 13, as discussed in Part A. 

 
N. URBANIZATION  
GOALS:  
1. To provide for the orderly and efficient transition from rural to urban land uses.  
2. To maintain Newberg's identity as a community which is separate from the Portland 
Metropolitan area.  
3. To create a quality living environment through a balanced growth of urban and 
cultural activities.  
 
Finding: These Goals and any relevant policies are met for the same reasons the proposal 
meets State Goal 14, as discussed in Part A. 

 

# 

  



P a g e  | 21 

 

 
 Newberg Community Development • 414 E First Street, Newberg, OR 97132 • 503-537-1240 • www.newbergoregon.gov 

Exhibit B-1 to File DCA25-0002 
Photo Examples of Side-Loaded Garages 

NMC 15.326.025 and NMC 15.410.020(A)(3) 
 

 

 

 

  

Garage openings setback less than 20 ft.  

Garage opening setback 20 ft. or more 



P a g e  | 22 

 

 
 Newberg Community Development • 414 E First Street, Newberg, OR 97132 • 503-537-1240 • www.newbergoregon.gov 

Exhibit B-2 to File DCA25-0002 
Residential Fence Height Standards Examples  

NMC 15.410.070(D) 
 

 
 

 
  



P a g e  | 23 

 

 
 Newberg Community Development • 414 E First Street, Newberg, OR 97132 • 503-537-1240 • www.newbergoregon.gov 

 

Exhibit B-3 to File DCA25-0002 
Research on Institutional Accessory Structures in Residential Zones 

NMC 15.415.010(C) 
 

 

 


